Public Document Pack

Argyll and Bute Council Comhairle Earra Ghaidheal agus Bhoid

Customer Services

Executive Director: Douglas Hendry



Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT Tel: 01546 602127 Fax: 01546 604435 DX 599700 LOCHGILPHEAD

21 January 2015

SUPPLEMENTARY PACK 1

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL - COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY, LOCHGILPHEAD on THURSDAY, 22 JANUARY 2015 at 11:00 AM

I enclose herewith item 5e (Minute of Environment, Development and Infrastructure Committee – 15 January 2015) which was marked "to follow" on the Agenda for the above meeting.

I also enclose herewith amended report for item 14a (LORN ARC TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING (TIF) PROGRAMME INITIATION DOCUMENT REPORT) on the Agenda for the above Meeting.

Douglas Hendry
Executive Director – Customer Services

TO FOLLOW ITEM

5. MINUTES OF COMMITTEES

(e) Environment, Development and Infrastructure Committee 15 January 2015 (Pages 1 - 6)

The above minutes are submitted to the Council for approval of any recommendations on the items which the Committee does not have delegated powers. These items are marked with an *.

AMENDED REPORT

14. LORN ARC TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING (TIF) PROGRAMME INITIATION DOCUMENT REPORT

Report by Executive Director – Development and Infrastructure Services

(a) Report by Executive Director - Development and Infrastructure Services (Pages 7 - 18)

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

Contact: Sandra McGlynn Tel: 01546 604401



MINUTES of MEETING of ENVIRONMENT, DEVELOPMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY, LOCHGILPHEAD on THURSDAY, 15 JANUARY 2015

Present: Councillor Ellen Morton (Chair)

Councillor Iain Stewart MacLean
Councillor Vivien Dance
Councillor Anne Horn
Councillor David Kinniburgh
Councillor Bruce Marshall
Councillor Iain Angus MacDonald
Councillor Alistair MacDougall

Councillor Robert G MacIntyre
Councillor Donald MacMillan
Councillor Ellen Morton
Councillor Elaine Robertson
Councillor Sandy Taylor
Councillor Richard Trail
Councillor Dick Walsh

Also Present Councillor Gordon Blair Councillor Roddie McCuish

Councillor Douglas Philand

Attending: Pippa Milne, Executive Director – Development and Infrastructure Services

Jim Smith, Head of Roads and Amenity Services

Fergus Murray, Head of Economic and Strategic Transport

Mark Calder, Communications Officer

Patricia O'Neill, Central Governance Manager

The Chair indicated that a non Member of the Committee, Councillor Gordon Blair, had notified her that he wished, in terms of Standing Order 22.1, to speak and vote in relation to all items on the Agenda. She exercised her discretion to allow him to participate in discussions but that he was not permitted to vote on these items in terms of Standing Order 22.1.

The Chair further intimated that Councillor Michael Breslin, who was not a member of the Environment, Development and Infrastructure Committee had notified her that he wished in terms of Standing Order 22.1 to speak and vote on item 7 of the Agenda. The Chair explained that as the matter was not an issue affecting the Members Ward in particular, she again was prepared to exercise her discretion as Chair to allow him to participate in discussions but not to vote on this item.

She intimated that both Members had been advised of the position in writing prior to the start of the meeting.

The Chair also welcomed Councillor Iain Maclean to his first meeting of the Committee.

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Duncan Macintyre and Alex McNaughton.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no Declarations of Interest intimated.

3. MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting of the Environment, Development and Infrastructure Committee held on 13 November 2014 were approved as a correct record.

4. SERVICE PLANS 2015 - 2016 FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND STRATEGIC TRANSPORT AND ROADS AND AMENITY SERVICES

Consideration was given to the proposed Service Plans for 2015-16 for Economic Development and Strategic Transport and Roads and Amenity Services.

Discussion took place on the importance of developing and promoting Tourism within the Argyll and Bute area; and also on the robust communications systems in place to inform the public of disruptions to travel or school closures.

Decision

The Committee agreed;

- (i) that under "Significant challenges";
 - (a) the word "Taskforce" be added to the end of the sentence beginning "To ensure that the economic and social interests of our island communities....":
 - (b) "within agreed timescales" be added to the end of the section on CHORD;
 - (c) that reference would be made to the inclusion of a robust Communication system; and
- (ii) to approve the proposed service plans for Economic Development and Strategic Transportation and Roads and Amenity Services for submission to the Policy and Resources Committee

(Reference: Report by Executive Director - Customer Services dated 15 January 2015, submitted)

5. DEVELOPMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES PERFORMANCE REPORT FQ2 2014 - 2015

The Committee considered a report which provided the performance report and associated scorecards for Development and Infrastructure Services for FQ2 2014-15.

Discussion took place on recycling and bin collections, Sea Kayaking, out of hours refuelling of Oban Coastguard helicopter and planning permissions. Members also commended officers for encouraging film companies to come to Argyll and Bute.

The Committee;

- (i) noted the performance report for Development and Infrastructure Services for FQ2 2014-15;
- (ii) agreed that the non uplift of recycling bins in a particular area of Tarbert be investigated;

- (iii) agreed that an update report on the maintenance and development of the Argyll Sea Kayak Trail be brought to a future meeting of the Committee;
- (iv) noted that an update progress report on the Scottish Ferry Services Plan and financial details would be brought to the relevant Area Committee in the first instance, followed by the Environment, Development and Infrastructure Committee and then Policy and Resources Committee;
- (v) agreed to prioritise the issue of re-fuelling Oban Coastguard helicopter during out of hours, and Members be provided with an update report on this; and
- (vi) agreed that further information on the progress of planning permissions and their implementation be provided to Members.

6. A83/TRANSPORT SCOTLAND UPDATE

A report which set out the arrangements for formal liaison between Argyll and Bute Council, Transport Scotland, the Trunk Road operating company (BEAR Scotland) and Police Scotland was considered.

The Chair updated Members on a meeting which had been attended by the Scottish Transport Minister. The focus was on the October landslip and it had been agreed that Transport Scotland and BEAR Scotland would continue to look at all options available to keeping the A83 at the Rest and Be Thankful open, along with the impact of mitigation measures, with the aim of ensuring "continuous access" to Argyll.

The next meeting would be brought forward from July.

Decision

The Committee noted and endorsed the report.

(Reference: Report by Executive Director – Development and Infrastructure Services dated December 2014.)

* 7. ELECTION POSTERS

A report was considered by the Committee which introduced a new policy which proposed that election and referendum campaign material not be permitted to be displayed on council property including street furniture.

Discussion also took place about information shared by the Chair, which referred to those Scottish Councils which had a policy for non display of election material on lampposts. Members deliberated the positive and negative aspects in relation to the proposed policy.

The Committee heard from the Head of Roads and Amenity Services on the key issues within the proposal and the position in other Councils which had adopted this approach.

Motion

To endorse the report and approve that the policy be taken to Council for approval as a Council policy.

Moved by Councillor Morton, seconded by Councillor Kinniburgh

Amendment

Take no further action.

Moved by Councillor MacDonald, seconded by Councillor Marshall

Decision

A vote was taken by a show of hands, there was 7 for the Motion and 7 for the Amendment. On there being an equality of votes the Chair gave her casting vote to the Motion and the Committee resolved accordingly.

The Committee:

- (i) agreed to endorse the report; and
- (ii) approved that the policy be taken to Council for approval as a Council policy.

(Reference: Report by Executive Director – Development and Infrastructure Services dated December 2014, submitted, and emails dated 15 January 2015 by the Chair)

Councillor Donald MacMillan left the meeting at this point.

8. SINGLE HARBOUR AUTHORITY OBAN

A report which provided an overview of the issues arising from the proposed creation of a new single harbour authority (SHA) in Oban setting out the benefits and risks associated with the proposal was considered.

Decision

The Committee agreed:

- 1. to support in principle the preferred option of a hybrid single harbour authority;
- 2. that officers continue discussions on that basis, exploring financial and governance implications and report back to the Committee when more detail was available.

(Reference: Report by Executive Director – Development and Infrastructure Services dated 17 December 2014, submitted)

9. CAMPBELTOWN TO ARDROSSAN FERRY SERVICE

The Committee considered a report which provided an update on the second year of

Page 5

the pilot service operating between Campbeltown and Ardrossan.

Decision

The Committee noted the contents of the report.

(Reference: Report by Executive Director – Development and Infrastructure Services dated 19 December 2014, submitted)

10. CRUISE SCOTLAND REPORT

A report was considered which provided the Committee with an update on the activity generated by Cruise Scotland this year.

The Committee considered membership of Cruise Scotland to be a real opportunity to; increase the number of cruise ships visiting not just Oban but also other areas of Argyll and Bute; to develop and expand the number of locations visited; and market the area's potential.

Decision

The Committee noted the contents of the report and endorsed the importance of Marine Tourism to the economy of Argyll and Bute.

(Reference: Report by Executive Director – Development and Infrastructure Services dated 15 January 2015, submitted)

11. ENVIRONMENT DEVELOPMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE WORKPLAN

An outline workplan to facilitate forward planning of reports to the EDI Committee was considered.

Decision

The Committee noted the report.

(Reference: Report on Environment, Development and Infrastructure Committee Work Plan 201/15 as at January 15 2015, submitted)

This page is intentionally left blank

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

COUNCIL

DEVELOPMENT & INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES

22 JANUARY 2015

LORN ARC TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING (TIF) PROGRAMME INITIATION DOCUMENT REPORT

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

- 1.1 The Full Business Case for the Lorn Arc Tax Incremental Financing (TIF) programme outlines the proposals for investing £18.9million in package of infrastructure improvements which in partnership with external funders will lead to a total investment of £41million in local infrastructure. It will improve access to the Scottish Association for Marine Science / European Marine Science Park, measures to improve Port and Marine facilities within the Lorn Arc area and other business related infrastructure which will support the delivery of the Local Development Plan and assist population growth through the generation of new employment opportunities.
- 1.2 TIF arrangements will allow Argyll and Bute Council to retain and use additional Non Domestic Rates (NDR) generated within an agreed boundary over a 25 year period. The infrastructure investment options will be reviewed, refined, planned, phased, scrutinised and delivered through the Council's robust governance process to ensure value for money and a return on investment over the coming years.
- 1.3 Following on from approval of the Full Business Case, the conditional approval letter from the Scottish Government was examined by Council officers before being returned for Minister sign-off. The Council received the signed letter from Nicola Sturgeon on the 7th May 2014 which has now been countersigned by the Chief Executive and sent back to the Scottish Government. The Lorn TIF is now moving forward to implementation stage.
- 1.4 Members are now requested to approve the Lorn Arc Programme Initiation Document (PID) for the programme. This PID requires to be approved to ensure that the programme is commenced prior to the Scottish Government deadline of 30th September 2015.
- 1.5 The PID includes the following significant elements:-
 - the governance arrangements for the Lorn Arc programme, including the roles of the Policy and Resources Committee and Oban, Lorn and the Isles Committee;
 - a 6 year revenue funding profile to allow the full operation of the Lorn Arc programme team/office;
 - the arrangements for agreeing individual project start up including initial borrowing to fund feasibility work, progressing to Full Business case stage and the mechanisms for delivery of these projects.

2.0 **RECOMMENDATIONS**

- 2.1 That the Lorn Arc TIF Programme Initiation Document be approved in full, including the following significant elements:-
 - approval to borrow under the TIF regime for Lorn Arc programme capital costs;
 - approval of the governance arrangements for the Lorn Arc programme, including the roles of the Policy and Resources Committee and Oban, Lorn and the Isles Committee:
 - approval of a 6 year revenue budget for the Lorn Arc programme team/office utilizing the balance on the General Fund earmarked to support the SOA;
 - approval of the process for individual project start-ups, including the borrowing required for feasibility work and Full Business cases for each of those projects;
 - approval to delegate delivery of the projects to the Executive Director of Development and Infrastructure, in conjunction with the Head of Strategic Finance and the Head of Customer and Support Services, following Policy and Resources Committee approval of the individual Full Business Cases;
 - approval to nominate the Executive Director of Development and Infrastructure to be the Council's nominated representative on the TIF Executive.

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

COUNCIL

DEVELOPMENT & INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES

22 JANUARY 2015

LORN ARC TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING (TIF) PROGRAMME INITIATION DOCUMENT REPORT

3.0 INTRODUCTION

- 3.1 This report outlines the background to the Lorn Arc TIF programme and requests the approval of the Programme Initiation Document (PID), the purpose of which is to:
 - define the aims, objectives and outcomes of the programme;
 - define the scope;
 - outline the work streams, key stages, activities, resources and responsibilities; and
 - set out the arrangements for governance and management of risks, issues and dependencies.
- 3.2 The Full Business Case for the Lorn Arc Tax Incremental Financing (TIF) programme outlines the proposals for investing £18.9million in package of infrastructure improvements which in partnership with external funders will lead to a total investment of £41million in local infrastructure. It will improve access to the Scottish Association for Marine Science / European Marine Science Park, measures to improve Port and Marine facilities within the Lorn Arc area and other business related infrastructure which will support the delivery of the Local Development Plan and assist population growth through the generation of new employment opportunities.
- 3.3 The top priority of the Council and its CPP Partners is to base our economic success through a growing population as detailed in the Single Outcome Agreement (SOA). This priority was reaffirmed at the December Policy and Resources Committee where Members approved Option D of the Delivering on the Single Outcome Agreement report, that aims to deliver a structured approach to managing budgets and investing for future economic growth. The Lorn Arc (TIF) programme is further evidence of the Council's clear intention to support this priority of the SOA and the decision made by the Policy and Resources Committee. Of particular relevance and importance to the Lorn Arc programme was the fact that Option D also sees the Council using the balance on the General Fund earmarked to support the SOA invested for income and where possible using this to establish an investment fund that could borrow to take forward projects that would generate an income stream and support the economy.

3.4 Approval of the PID will allow the Lorn Arc programme to move into its implementation phase.

4.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

- 4.1 That the Lorn Arc TIF Programme Initiation Document be approved in full, including the following significant elements:-
 - approval to borrow under the TIF regime for Lorn Arc programme capital costs;
 - approval of the governance arrangements for the Lorn Arc programme, including the roles of the Policy and Resources Committee and Oban, Lorn and the Isles Committee:
 - approval of a 6 year revenue budget for the Lorn Arc programme team/office utilizing the balance on the General Fund earmarked to support the SOA;
 - approval of the process for individual project start-ups, including the borrowing required for feasibility work and Full Business cases for each of those projects;
 - approval to delegate delivery of the projects to the Executive Director of Development and Infrastructure, in conjunction with the Head of Strategic Finance and the Head of Customer and Support Services, following Policy and Resources Committee approval of the individual Full Business Cases;
 - approval to nominate the Executive Director of Development and Infrastructure to be the Council's nominated representative on the TIF Executive.

5.0 DETAIL - LORN ARC PROGRAMME

- A TIF programme allows local authorities to borrow capital to fund infrastructure that will enable economic growth. In order to gain Scottish Government approval the programme must demonstrate that the funded infrastructure unlocks regeneration and sustainable economic growth and will generate additional public sector revenues to repay the financing requirements. A Full Business Case has previously been developed and approved by Scottish Government, for the Lorn Arc TIF programme. This Full Business Case details the justification, including the financial and economic case, for utilising TIF to deliver investment within the proposed area and is the basis for the selection of the chosen enabling infrastructure. It details why it's believed this infrastructure will deliver the growth and the Non Domestic Rates additionality envisaged. The business case also detailed how the project will be delivered and also how risk is allocated and managed.
- 5.2 In January 2014 the Council was informed that the Full Business Case was approved, subject to minor amendments that were deemed acceptable to the Council. Following a detailed appraisal of the conditional letter forwarded by the Scottish Government, the Council accepted the offer and subsequently received on the 7th of May 2014 a signed letter providing the Council with sufficient authority to commence the TIF programme.

- 5.3 This TIF programme has been named **Lorn Arc**. The Lorn Arc programme is now moving into its delivery phase. An Oban Lorn Arc Regeneration Project Manager, Adrian Jackson-Stark, has been appointed from the Council's Development Policy team, to support the implementation of Lorn Arc. He will be partnered by the current Oban Regeneration Project Manager Linda Houston to ensure that a holistic approach to the further development of the Oban and wider Lorn area is taken forward.
- 5.4 The Lorn Arc programme is an integral element of the Council's investment in economic growth and is considered to be essential for attracting further inward investment to the Lorn area with consequential positive impacts for wider Argyll and Bute. Following on from the Single Outcome Agreement and the recent Population Summit the Lorn Arc programme is considered by the Council to be even more relevant and important to the future of Argyll and Bute than it was at the time when the Full Business Case was developed. The Lorn Arc programme is also considered to be integral to the delivery of outcomes 1 and 2 of the Single Outcome Agreement (SOA) and to be fully in line with the decision made by the Policy and Resources Committee in December 2014 to support the delivery of the SOA by taking a structured approach to managing budgets and to invest for economic growth. The Lorn Arc programme is one of first of a suite of investment initiatives that are being developed across Argyll land Bute to deliver the Single Outcome Agreement and economic growth.
- In particular, the focus of the Lorn Arc programme is on delivering essential infrastructure to unlock further private sector growth and investment in a number of identified development opportunities. Notwithstanding all of the above, the Council is mindful that Lorn Arc represents a borrowing consent for up to £18.89 million and not a grant. This requires that it be paid back by the Council over a 25 year period predominantly through the generation of additional non-domestic rates being used to pay this money back. Long term the Council will benefit from increased economic activity, more jobs and an anticipated increase in population. Further indirect financial benefits will be delivered through additional council tax, harbour dues and parking income.
- The original business case was produced with a displacement figure of 18.38%. The agreement letter from the Scottish Government amends this to 22% and this means that the Council can now collect half of 78% of the total NDR uplift rather than half of 82%. This in turn means that the business case stated income streams to eventually deliver up to £1.56m per annum are revised to £1.49m per annum. In addition, since the production of the original business case the timing of the capital expenditure has changed. The main reason for this is that the initial project which was going to launch the TIF programme, Lorn / Kirk Road has been delayed due to the likely requirement for compulsory purchase orders. The change in capital profile impacts on the timing of Non Domestic Rates recovery. The repayment year has moved as a result of these changes from year 20 to year 24.
- 5.7 The extension and improvement of the North Pier is forecast to yield a significant additional revenue steam through new berthing fees, whereas at present the Council is turning away berthing revenue as the North Pier cannot currently accommodate these additional vessels.
- 5.8 There is potential within the Oban area to develop and review the current parking arrangements with an anticipated increase in the number of paying long stay /

short stay parking spaces within the town centre.

- 5.9 Whilst the Lorn Arc programme does not directly relate to facilitating housing development, some of the projects will, whilst focused on the delivery of commercial developments, unlock potential for new housing development. For example, the improvement of the Dunbeg Corridor Road network is focused on the delivery of commercial development at both Halfway and at the European Marine Science Park / SAMs. It will also enable significant new housing development to take place. This new housing development will generate significant council tax revenues for the Council that would otherwise not be realized.
- 5.10 Lorn Arc will only succeed therefore if investment is forthcoming from the private sector and consequently it will rely on a phased approach to minimise risk to the Council and also involve close partnership working with other agencies and the private sector to deliver the desired outcomes. The Council also recognises that Lorn Arc will require investment from out with Lorn to deliver maximum benefits to our area. Council investment of £18.9m will result in a total of £41m worth of infrastructure being delivered through partnership working with external funders. As the opportunities created by the enabling infrastructure are developed by private sector / external bodies further investment will result. The promotion and marketing of Lorn as a place in which to live, visit and invest in will therefore be a key aspect of Lorn Arc and aligns closely with the Single Outcome Agreement's key outcomes. To this end a Lorn Arc logo (see diagram 1 below) has been designed with the strap line 'investing in your future'. This will be used in all future promotion and marketing.

Diagram 1: Lorn Arc Logo



- 5.11 Lorn Arc will commence when the first work starts on the ground. This is required by the agreement with the Scottish Government to take place prior to 30th September 2015 and is termed the 'First TIF Investment'. The First TIF Investment triggers the start of both the borrowing term / payback period of 25 years and the additional NDR capture. It is expected that the First TIF Investment will be Project 9: Existing Access Improvements and Business Park Enablement at Oban Airport. A subsequent committee report on the delivery of this project is expected to be presented to the Policy and Resources Committee in February 2015. It is necessary to carry out all design, planning and procurement for the project prior to work starting on site.
- 5.12 In order to progress the Lorn Arc programme, the team has developed a robust and fit for purpose Programme Initiation Document (PID). The PID describes how the Lorn Arc programme will be delivered and managed. The purpose of this PID

is to:

- a) Set out the aims, objectives and outcomes of Lorn Arc;
- b) Define the scope of the Lorn Arc programme, with outline details / timelines for the 9 sub-projects;
- c) Set out the work streams, key stages, activities, resources and responsibilities;
- d) Set out the arrangements for governance and management of risks, issues and dependencies;
- e) Seek approval for 6 year revenue funding of the Lorn Arc programme team/office:
- f) Seek approval to borrow under the TIF regime for Lorn Arc programme capital costs.

5.13 The PID therefore includes the following:

- A Governance plan that outlines how the programme and projects will be monitored and controlled in terms of decision points, reports and reporting cycles, and frequency of project updates;
- ii. A Finance section detailing the process / timelines and amounts for both revenue and capital spend;
- iii. Details of accountabilities, roles and responsibilities of each of the project team, including resource requirements;
- iv. A Quality Plan detailing acceptance criteria and how it will be quality assured and signed-off;
- v. Programme / Project Controls (including tolerances levels for time and cost and exceptions);
- vi. A Programme Plan (e.g. a Gantt chart) on when the overall programme elements and each specific project should start and be completed;
- vii. A Risk Register including their probability and impact, as well as mitigating actions:
- viii. A Communication Plan (that will be developed further as the programme /projects develop) that will outline how the project will be communicated to all its different audiences.
- 5.14 The Governance arrangements for the Lorn Arc programme are detailed in full within the PID (Section 3.3, 3.4, 3.5 & 3.6). By way of summary, the governance can be split into two elements; internal to the Council and external to the Council.
- 5.15 The external governance is a mandatory requirement of the approval from Scottish Government and takes the form of a programme 'Executive' which is a three person group that oversees the performance and reporting elements of the programme. The Executive representatives are from Scottish Government, Scottish Futures Trust and the Council. The Council representative is required to be a senior officer of the Council.

The Executive will:

- Review and monitor the programme, providing advice and guidance when necessary;
- Review and consider all financial reporting;
- Consider and make recommendations to Scottish Government relating to any proposed deviation from the originally approved Full Business Case;
- Approve new Full Business Cases for the two sub projects that were not

- approved in detail as part of the original programme Full Business Case approval (Barcaldine Operation & Maintenance facility and Oban South);
- Approve the inclusion of any additional development sites identified.
- 5.16 Initial meetings have already taken place between Council officers, the Scottish Government and Scottish Futures Trust. It is clear that all parties are committed to work together and reach a consensus view when considering the matters referred to above in 5.10. There is a shared goal to deliver key infrastructure which levers in private sector investment and delivers sustainable economic growth for Argyll and Bute. Whilst the Executive must agree any deviations to the business case that has been agreed with Scottish Government it is not able to commit the Council to any project that will not first have been approved by the Policy and Resources Committee.
- 5.17 The internal governance is primarily undertaken through the Policy and Resources committee which will be responsible for the approval of the startup process and funding required to take each of the projects to Full Business Case. The startup process of a project is comprised of elements such as economic and financial modelling, design work, feasibility assessment, planning assessment, site survey work etc. and is essential for the formulation of a robust Full Business Case. These startup costs are broadly speaking, expected to constitute approximately 20% of the total project costs and will be funded from the TIF borrowing as capital costs. These are included within the identified borrowing of £18.9m.
- 5.18 It is also proposed that Policy and Resources Committee will also consider the individual Full Business Cases for each project that forms part of the overall Lorn Arc programme. These business cases will set out the benefits, costs and detailed implementation plan for each of the 9 projects and will determine their progression on an individual basis. The project delivery costs are broadly speaking, expected to constitute the remaining 80% of the total project costs and will be funded from the TIF borrowing as capital costs.
- 5.19 It is also important to keep local members informed on progress on both the overall programme and the individual projects, taking advantage of local knowledge and views. Accordingly it is proposed to present programme update reports and Full Business Case reports relating to individual projects to the Oban Lorn and the Isles Area Committee / Business Days for information and discussion prior to consideration by the Policy and Resources Committee.
- Once the Full Business Cases for individual projects have been approved by the Policy and Resources Committee, the Executive Director of Development and Infrastructure will be responsible for the implementation of the agreed projects within the parameters set out within the PIDs. The Executive Director of Development and Infrastructure will be supported by the Head of Customer and Support Services and the Head of Strategic Finance, who will collectively constitute the Programme Board. The Board will oversee the activities of the various officers who will be involved in implementing the programme, known collectively as the programme team. The members of the Programme Team are set out in section 3.6 of the Programme PID. The Policy and Resources Committee will receive the following reports:

- Bi annual update reports;
- Project initiation reports;
- Project full business cases;
- Project completion reports;
- Deviation reports (if the project falls out with the tolerances and exception criteria detailed within the PID).
- 5.21 A revenue budget is required to be established to facilitate the running costs of the overall programme. This revenue cannot be funded from TIF borrowing as it does not result in the creation of an asset that can be financed through the TIF scheme. It is proposed that the revenue budget will be funded by the Council using the balance on the General Fund earmarked to support the SOA in line with the decision made by the Policy and Resources Committee in December 2014 relating to the report on Delivering on the Single Outcome Agreement.
- 5.22 These revenue costs are primarily related to staff, office and third party payments. The third party payments comprise of internal cross service charges and professional support along with the services of external economists and other professionals required for the overall delivery of the programme. Full details of the proposed revenue budget are detailed within the PID (section 6) and a summary is included below in table 1.

Table 1 – Revenue Budget						
Expense	Time period					
Type	2014-15	2015-16	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20
	£'000	£'000	£'000	£'000	£'000	£'000
Employees	30	74	127	128	130	131
Premises	14	26	28	28	28	28
Supplies &						
Services	6	17	13	13	14	13
Third Party						
Payments	48	159	161	124	125	125
Transport	2	3	3	3	3	3
TOTAL	100	279	332	296	300	300

6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1 The Lorn Arc programme is an integral element of the Council's investment in economic growth and is considered to be essential for attracting further inward investment to the Lorn area with consequential positive impacts for wider Argyll and Bute and to be fully in line with the decision made by the Policy and Resources Committee in December 2014 relating to the report on Delivering on the Single Outcome Agreement.

6.2 In order to progress the Lorn Arc programme, the team has developed a robust Programme Initiation Document (PID). The PID describes how the Lorn Arc programme will be delivered and managed. Approval of the PID is required to ensure that the programme is commenced prior to the Scottish Government deadline of 30th September 2015.

7.0 IMPLICATIONS

- 7.1 **Policy** The delivery of the Lorn Arc programme fits with the Council's Corporate Plan, Single Outcome Agreement, EDAP and approved Local Development Plan policy. The economic outcomes from this programme will also contribute to the Government's Economic Strategy.
- 7.2 **Financial** The Lorn Arc TIF business case has secured the ability of the Council to borrow up to £18.89 million to take forward the Lorn Arc programme. Approval of the Lorn Arc Programme Initiation Document (PID) enables the draw-down of this borrowing and the establishment of associated revenue budgets to enable the programme to operate.
- 7.3 **Legal** None.
- 7.4 **HR** The PID requests revenue resources for the recruitment of a dedicated administration officer to enable the Programme Managers to progress the Lorn Arc programme. Work will commence to recruit for this post following approval of the PID.
- 7.5 **Equalities** An Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken as part of the Full Business Case process. The programme will comply with the Council's equality and sustainability policies. The specific TIF Asset project Full Business Cases will include an Equalities Impact Assessment and a Sustainability Assessment.
- 7.6 **Risk** A Risk Assessment has been undertaken as part of the Full Business Case process and a risk register forms an integral part of the Project Initiation Document (PID) and future individual project element Business Cases.
- 7.7 **Customer Service** The Lorn Arc TIF will have a significant impact upon the communities within the Lorn area.

Pippa Milne Executive Director of Development and Infrastructure,

Ellen Morton
Policy Lead for Special Projects

5th January 2015

For further information contact:

Adrian Jackson-Stark
Oban Lorn Arc Regeneration Project
Manager
01631 567970
adrian.jackson-stark@argyll-bute.gov.uk

Linda Houston
Oban Regeneration Project Manager
Argyll & Bute Council
01631 569181
linda.houston@argyll-bute.gov.uk

Attachments: Appendix A - Project Initiation Document - Lorn Arc

This page is intentionally left blank